
Si'lah Planning Commission
Regular Meeting
Tuesday, November2015
StiOp.m.
Cilv Council Chambers

CITY OF SELAH

115 West Naches Avenue

Sclah, Washington 98942

City Planner;
Secretary:

A.

B.

C.

D.

Call to Order - Cliairman

Roll Call

Agenda Changes

Communications

1. Oral

AGENDA

Chairman-.

Commissioners:

Willie Quinnell
Dillon Pendlcion

Lisa Smith

Eric Miller

Carl Torkelson

Tom Durant

Caprise Groo

fThis is apublic meeting. If you wish to address the Commission concerning any matter that is not on the agenda, you may do so now.
j Please come forward to the podiutn. stating your name and address for the record. 1lie Chairman resen-es the riglil to place a time limit
I on each person asking to be heard.

2. Written - None

E. Approval of Minutes

1. October 20.2015

F. Public Hearings

1. Old Business -

2. New Business -

G.

H.

I.

General Business

1. Old Business -

2. New Business-

Reports/.Announcements

1. Chainnan

2- Commissioners

3. Staff

^diou^ienl

Next Regular Meeting: November 17,2015



City of Selah
Planning Commission Minutes

Of
October 20,2015

Selah Council Chambers

115 W. Naches Ave.

Selah, Washington 98942

A. Call to Order- Chairman calledtliemeeting to orderat 5:34pm.

B. Roll Call

MembersPresent: CommissionersQuinnell, Smith, Torkelson, Pendleton and Miller.
Staff Present: Tom Durant, Consultant, Caprise Groo, Secretary.
Guest Don Wayman, City Administrator.

C. Agenda Chances

None

D. Communications

1. Oral-

Mr. Eriekson approached thepodium. Hestated hisaddress as 903 W Fremont. He wanted to defme SpotDevelopment.
He statedthat it meanttakinga spotand developing it with no rulesor regulations.

Chairman Quinnell asked if anyoneelsewouldlik; to speakaboutsomething not on the agenda.

2. Written - None

E. Approval ofMinutes

1. October 6,2015

Commissioner Smithmotionedto approvethe minutes.

Commissioner Torkelson seconded the motion.

ChairmanQuinnell asked for a voice voteand the minuteswere approvedwith a vote of 4-0.

F. Public Hearings

1. Old Business - 2015 Annual Urban Growth Area Plan Amendments:

Plan Amendment 2015-1; Carl & Candi Torkelson 905 W. Fremont MDR to HDR

Commissioner Torkelson recused himself.

ChairmanQuinnellstated that the subjectwas left forclarificationby Mr. Noe

Mr. Durant stated that the staff report was in the packet and a letter was received afterthe meeting. He stated that he
redid theRecommended Findings andConclusion andadded some additional Findings. Heexplained thathe imderstood
that the Commission was concerned with not setting precedents. He stated that he went over them with the City
Attorney. He revisited the sewer concemand statedthe solutionwas to install a backwater valve. He explained that the
permits for the property were issued properly andthebuilding could be converted to something else. Heread thefinding

1

Planning Commission
October 20,2015



from 5-11.He explained that this would not set precedent. He statedthatUl1 allowed theCommissioners to use finding
as controlling factors. (Findings Attached)

Chairman Quinnell asked if anyone had questions.

Commissioner Miller stated he did see the need to change the zoning for one little home. He stated he would rather see
the house move to another lot or taken out.

Commissioner Smith questioned #8 of the findings and asked if the "shall" should be changed to 'Svill" in the second
sentence. (Conected Findings Attached)

Mr. Durant stated that it had passed muster.

Chairman Quinnell askedMr.Durantforhis definition of a SpotDevelopment.

Mr. Durant stated that Spot Development was a new term that developed form Spot Zoning. Spot Zoning has been
discouraged. Heexplained that it isa piece ofproperty that has been zoned different than everything else. The Zoning is
solely for the property owner and is inconsistent with theComprehensive Plan. Hestated that this was not azoning but a
Comprehensive PlanAmendment and was consistent with TheCorrqrrehensive plan. Hestated thathe didnot know if it
could be called a Spot Zone or not

Commissioner Millerdiscussed thedriveway issue, thedensity issue andwhatis rightandwrong.

Commissioner Smith stated that the issue was not a win-win issue and she saw both sides.

Commissioner Miller questioned why thepermits were issued with thatbuilding to notbeoccupied. Hestated that is the
building had value itshould bemoved. He stated that itdidn't make any sense todoit He stated that itseem like a gift.

Mr. Torkelson asked ifhe could address that comment

ChairmanQuirmell asked it Mr.Torkelsonwould like to speakon his own behalf.He invitedhimto the Podium.

Mr. Torkelson stated he was not asking for a gift, he stated he was asked for what staff and others talked about He
explained that the sewer line was not marked on the Title. He explained that it has taken time to resolve this issue. He
statedthat the Commission had its legalanswerand thestaffreport.

Commissioner Smith asked ifMr. Torkelson understood the issue ofan R-3 zone

Mr. Torkelson stated thathe didunderstand the issue andagreed about notsetting precedent. Hestated thathe would not
do anything thatwas badfortheCity. Heexplained thathe was nottheonlyonewhowould lookat their title andnotsee
the sewer line easement. He stated ftiat this issue has been a hardship and has taken a lot oftime toresolve. He explained
that he did not think this situation wouldhappenagain.He statedthat it washarderto rent littleunits..

Commissioner Smith asked if he thought itwould beworth it to renttheplace.

He stated that hedid. He stated that generally his target market was 3 bedroom 2 Vi bath and 15 to 18 hundred square
feet. He statedthat the big houseon thepropertydoesnot meetthat

Commissioner Smith asked Mr. Durant what steps would beinplace tostop this from happening again

Mr. Durant stated that permits would not be issued for a new building without flie existing building being removed, at
least not with aproperty this size. He stated that staffdidn't know why that was done. He explained that with a bigger lot
that works but not with a lot this size.

Mr. Wayman stated that hewould notsign offon something like that. He explained that it happened under a different
administration.

Planning Commission
October 20,2015



ChaiimanQuinnell askedif therewasany otherpropertyin Selahthat thishad happened to.

Mr. Durant stated that he was not aware ofany.

Mr. Wayman directed the question to Mr. Henne.

Mr. Henne stated that that was a different Planner andAdministrator thatwas overseeing Planning. Heexplained hedid
not know how they got into that position.

Discussion ensued about precedent, legalitiesand sewer lines.

Conclusion: in order to occupy/rent the littleunit tae changeneedstobe made.

Chairman Quinnell askedif the littleunit wouldchangestructurally.

Mr.Torkelson statedthat it would allbe cosmetic changes. He discussed driveway changes.

Chairman Quiiuiell stated for the record that he did not like changing one piece of property and did not want to set
precedent. He stated that this needed to be addressed with intelligences. He a^ed who was responsible for installing the
backflow preventer.

Commissioner Milleraskedaboutthe sewerdepthandgrade.

Chairman Quinnell explained that sidesewers andthemain sewer line aretwodifferent things.

Mr. Hennestated that thesewerline was put in 50-60yearsago He explained that the sidesewers were flatand tliecode
stated thatthefixture units below thenextmanhole needed protected with backwater valves.

CommissionerMiller commentedon notifyingresidentsofthe issue.

Chairman Quinnell stated that the little house didi.'t affect the issue.

Commissioner Millerdeclared thathe neededto knowthis wasnotsettingprecedents.

Mr. Wayman stated thebetter records were being kept andhewas confident this would nothappen again

Discussion ensued aboutprecedent andthisissuesurfacing again.

Chairman Quinnell asked for a motion.

Commissioner Smith motioned to approve thefindings and conclusion fiom theCity with the word rhangp in #8 from
shall not to will not.

Chairman Quinnell stated thehedidnotfell that they were setting precedents butfixing something that needed fixed. He
stated that he would like that written into the document somewhere.

Conunissioner Millerstatedhe wouldliketo see approved withgreatconcern.

Mr. Durant stated that #11 's wording would bechinged toadd "the Commission is willing toapprove theamendment on
theassurance that it willnotsetprecedent anywhere in theCity".

Chairman Quinnell clarified the conditions ofchanging shall towill and #11 changing soasnot tosetprecedent.

Commissioner Miller seconded the motion

Chairman Quinnell asked fora voice voteandthemotion was passed with a voteof3-0.

3
Planning Commission
October 20,2015



New Business -StudySession-Design and Constmction Standards and speciiications for Public Works Inprovements.

Mr. Durant explained tbat this was a Public Works document to provide standards for public andprivate projects. He
stated that this was a study session and that they would like theCommissions thoughts onthesubject

Mr. Henne stated the he has put togetherConstruction Standards for all aspectsof a project He stated it wasa work in
progress at thistimeand clarification on inspections vs testing. He askedfor comments fromtheCommission.

Commissioner Smith asked if thisis thefirst time this hasbeenput inwriting.

Mr. Henne stated the 10.50 is very limited. He stated that this document have more detail.

Commissioner Milleraskedif thiswilldetailwhatiswanted without negotiation.

Mr. Henne replied that there was some flexibility to allow standards tobe modified. He stated that is was they do now
but in writing.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Henne stated he would like to get this to council.He stated he would like the CommissionsComments.

Discussion Ensued. Inspection fees,clarification fordevelopers and costs.

Mr. Henne stated that there are something thatmaycause problems particularly asphalt He stated that there would be
more clarification on fees.

Discussion Community wells and leapfrogdevelopments.

G. General Business

1. Old Business - None

2. New Business- None

H. Reports/Announcements

1. Chairman

2. Commissioners

3. Staff

Mr. Wayman discussed Volunteer Park.

Commissioner Smith asked about meeting with thecouncil atdienextCouncil meeting andthetime.

Mr. Durant clarified there would be a meeting November 3,2015. This was due to the Council needing the minutes of
this meeting.

Mr. Durant discussed the next meeting.

Mr. Wayman talkedabout 10.24and thecouncilmeeting.

Mr. Henne clarified thatthenexttime theywould talkabout dieDevelopment standards would be inDecember 2015.

Commissioner Smithclarifiedwhat the meetingon theNovember 3,2015 wouldbe about.

Mr. Durantstatedthat theonly thingdiat mightcomeup is a communication town.

Discussion ensued.

Planning Commission
October 20,2015



Conclusion: themeeting onNovember 3,2015 willbejust tosignminutes.

Adjournment

Coinmissioner Millermotioned to adjourn the meeting, Commissioner Smithseconded the motion.
Chairman Quinnell adjourned the meeting at 6:54pm witha voicevoteof 4-0.

Planning Commission
October 20,2015

Chairman



To Whom It May Concern:

I have lived in Selah for45 years. I am notopposed to Selah growing, butam strongly
against making high density for Freemont, Speyers, or our other streets. These streets
should be low density.

I have seen the houses on Freemont and can't even imagine howa fire truck could get to
them in case of an emergency. Also I understand therewas a problem with the sewer,
because oftoo many units in one small area.

The newunits beside the high school are alsoa concern. No sidewalks are required? I
was also told therewas a broken gas line recently andthe gas company had not been
contaaed ahead of time thatthere wasgoing to bedigging. Thebigquestion is why
wasn't the high school and surrounding houses evacuated with the gas leak?

Another concern is with so many units going in the schools will be overcrowded.

Thank you!

Sincerely .

Janet Ries ^
\.Ist iicr •,



RECOMMENDED FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

Selah Urban Area Comprehensive Plan

Future Land Use Map Amendment 15-01

October 20,2015

This matter having come on for publichearing before the Selah Planning Commission on
October 6, 2015 andcontinued to October 20,2015forthe purpose ofan application by Carl
and Candi Torkelson to change the Future Land Use designation of Parcel 181435-31024 from
Moderate Density Residential to High Density Residential.

Members of the Commission presentat the public hearing were

Legal notification pursuant to Selah Municipal Code was given on August 26and September 25,
2015. All persons weregiven the opportunity to speak for against the proposed Comprehensive
Plan Amendment.

1. The Commission adopts the stafffindings and reportas to the existing use, zoning and
future land use designationof the subject and adjacent properties.

2. Owners of adjacent lands expressed Approval / Disapproval of the proposal.

3. The majority of commentsreceived were in favor of / opposition to the proposal.

4. The Planning Commission adopts the following findings from the September9, 2015 staff
report:

a. The proposed plan amendment isconsistent with the goals, objectives, mapping
criteria and policies of the comprehensive plan: Single-family dwellings and R-2
zoning is not inconsistent withthe High Density Residential (HDR) Plan designation.
Adensity of greater than 12 dwellingunits per acre is inconsistent with the

Moderate Density Residential Plan designation, but consistent with the HDR

designation.The property is served bymunicipal utility services and it does not
comprise or encouragesprawl. It isconsistentwith providing for a variety of
residential densities and housing types. The common openspace and provision for
vehicularaccess from the north as depicted on the site plansubmitted with the
application is consistent with the HDR plan designation and Plan Policy TRAN 1.4.

b. The proposed Plan Amendment betterimplements applicable Comprehensive Plan
policies because existing development ofthesite conforms to the maximum density
and it does notrequire the conversion ofthe older house onthe property to a non-
residential use or its removal.

Page 1



c. The proposed plan amendment has minimal cumulative impact when combined

with the one other plan amendment application under consideration in this annual

review because the potential for an increase in the number of dwelling units on this

site resulting from the proposedchange is limited to one unit.The proposal results
in a slight increase in acreage designated for high density residential with a

correspondingdecrease inthe acreage designatedfor moderate density residential,
the increase in the number of units resulting from both plan amendments is no

more than two and probably less.

d. The public needforthe proposed plan amendment Is better utilization ofexisting
buildings on the site. Thechanged circumstances include the change in the Future
Land Use Designation that was made in 2006as noted In the comprehensive plan.
Prior to that date and at the time the Plan was adopted in 2005, the minimumarea

that could be designated High Density Residential was one acre.

e. The proposed planamendment does not require changesto implementing
regulations In order for them to remain consistentwiththe Comprehensive Plan.
This isprimarily because R-2 zoning is not inconsistent withthe Moderate Density
Residential plan designation.

f. No inconsistencies with Countywide Planning Policies have been identified.

g. The proposed plan amendment, located well Inside the City Limits does not conflict
with comprehensive plans adopted by Yakima County or other cities with which

Selah has common borders or related regional issues.

h. Suitability of the site Is supported bythe existing development of the site, its
location in an urbanized and fully developed part of the City and full range of
transportation, utilities and City services at the site.

5. Circumstances of this application that make it unique include the location of a City sewer
line across the subject property in a location that was not disclosedon the title, the
necessity for the applicantto make an unexpected change in plans resulting in a smaller
dwelling unit than planned foralong with the otherwise unusable house and direction given
to the applicant at the time by Citystaff.

6. Had the applicant been able to develop the site as planned, there would have been two

dwelling units of the same size, rather than the larger1,300square foot unit and the smaller
560 squarefoot unitthat wasdeveloped due to the existence ofthe sewer line and required
setbacks from it.

Page 2



7. The decisions by theapplicant to allow theexisting house to reniain and theapplication for
planamendment were made at the direction of City staff.

8. By recognizing theexisting unoccupied house and allowing its occupancy, under the unique
circumstances described above, theproposed plan amendment Is consistent with thegoals
and policies ofthe comprehensive plan and corrects the errors made previously that led up
to this situation. By making this a controlling factor, this actionshall not be considered a
precedent for future plan amendments where all ofthe same factors are notalso present
thereby maintaining consistency with Policy HSG 1.1 to discourage taking an action that
could lead to the incremental conversion of single-family dwellings inthis area.

9. The Commission finds that the present and future needs ofthe community will be
adequately served and the community asa whole will benefit rather than being injured by
the proposal.

10. Environmental Review has been completed, a Determination of Nonsignificance was issued
and the Commission issatisfied that environmental review wascompleted incompliance
with Selah Municipal Code Chapter 11.40.

11. In addition to Finding #8,which the Commission finds to be controlling, the Commission
determines that findings to be the controlling factors in its deliberations on the

Comprehensive Plan amendment.

DECISION

The Commission, based on these findings, conclusions and controlling factors finds that the Selah Urban
Area Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use designation of Parcel 181435-31024 should be changed from
Moderate Density Residential to High Density Residential.

Motion to Approve/Deny by: Second by Vote

Page 3



RECOMMENDED FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

Selah Urban Area Comprehensive Plan

Future Land Use Map Amendment 15-01

October 20,2015

This matter having come on for public hearing before the Selah Planning Commission on

October 6,2015 and continued to October 20,2015 for the purpose of an application by Carl

and Candi Torkelson to change the Future Land Use designation of Parcel 181435-31024 from

Moderate Density Residential to High Density Residential.

Members of the Commission present at the public hearing were Quinnell, Smith and Miller.

Legal notification pursuant to Selah Municipal Code was given on August 26 and September 25,

2015. All persons were given the opportunity to speak for against the proposed Comprehensive

Plan Amendment.

1. The Commission adopts the staff findings and report as to the existing use, zoning and

future land use designation of the subject and adjacent properties.

2. Owners of adjacent lands expressed Disapproval of the proposal.

3. The majority of comments received were in opposition to the proposal.

4. The Planning Commission adopts the following findings from the September 9,2015 staff

report:

a. The proposed plan amendment is consistent with the goals, objectives, mapping
criteria and policiesof the comprehensive plan: Single-family dwellings and R-2
zoning is not inconsistent with the High Density Residential (HDR) Plan designation.

A density of greater than 12 dwelling units per acre is inconsistent with the

Moderate Density Residential Plan designation, but consistent with the HDR

designation. The property is served by municipal utility services and It does not

comprise or encourage sprawl. It is consistent with providing for a variety of

residential densities and housing types. The common open space and provisionfor
vehicular access from the north as depicted on the site plan submitted with the

application is consistent with the HDR plan designation and Plan PolicyTRAN 1.4.

b. The proposed Plan Amendment better implements applicable Comprehensive Plan

policies because existingdevelopment of the site conforms to the maximum density
and it does not require the conversion of the older house on the property to a non-

residential use or its removal.

Page 1



c. The proposed plan amendment has minimal cumulative impact when combined

with the one other plan amendment application under consideration in this annuai

review because the potential for an increase in the number of dwelling units on this

site resulting from the proposed change is limited to one unit. The proposai resuits
in a slight increase in acreage designated for high density residentiai with a

corresponding decrease in the acreage designated for moderate density residential,

the increase in the number of units resulting from both plan amendments is no

more than two and probably less.

d. The public need for the proposed plan amendment is better utilization of existing

buildings on the site. The changed circumstances include the change in the Future

Land Use Designationthat was made in 2006 as noted in the comprehensive pian.
Prior to that date and at the time the Plan was adopted in 2005, the minimum area

that could be designated High Density Residentiai was one acre.

e. The proposed pian amendment does not require changes to implementing

regulations in order for them to remain consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.
This is primarily because R-2 zoning is not inconsistent with the Moderate Density
Residential plan designation.

f. No inconsistencies with Countywide Planning Policieshave been identified.

g. The proposed plan amendment, located well inside the City Limits does not conflict

with comprehensive plans adopted by Yakima County or other cities with which

Seiah has common borders or related regional issues.

h. Suitability of the site is supported by the existing development of the site, its

locationin an urbanized and fully developed part of the City and full rangeof
transportation, utilities and City services at the site.

Circumstancesof this applicationthat make it unique includethe location of a City sewer
line across the subject property in a location that was not disclosed on the title, the
necessity for the applicant to make an unexpected change in plans resulting in a smaller
dwellingunit than planned for alongwith the otherwise unusable house and direction given
to the applicant at the time by City staff.

Had the applicant been able to develop the site as planned, there would have been two

dwelling units of the same size, rather than the larger 1,300 square foot unit and the smaller
560 square foot unit that was developed due to the existence of the sewer line and required
setbacks from it.

Page 2



7. The decisions by the applicant to allow the existing house to remain and the application for

plan amendment were made at the direction of City staff.

8. By recognizing the existing unoccupied house and allowing its occupancy, under the unique

circumstances described above, the proposed plan amendment is consistent with the goals

and policies of the comprehensive plan and corrects the errors made previously that led up

to this situation. Bymaking this a controlling factor, this action will not be considered a

precedent for future plan amendments where all of the same factors are not also present

thereby maintaining consistency with Policy HSG 1.1 to discourage taking an action that

could lead to the incremental conversion of single-family dwellings in this area.

9. The Commission finds that the present and future needs of the community will be

adequately served and the community as a whole will benefit rather than being injured by

the proposal.

10. Environmental Review has been completed, a Determination of Nonsignificance was issued

and the Commission is satisfied that environmental review was completed In compliance

with Selah Municipal Code Chapter 11.40.

11. The Commission determines that finding #8 to be the controlling factor in its deliberations

on the Comprehensive Plan amendment. The Commission Iswilling to approve this

amendment on assurance that it will not set a precedent anywhere in the City.

DECISION

The Commission, based on these findings, conclusions and controlling factors finds that the Selah Urban

Area Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use designation of Parcel 181435-31024 should be changed from

Moderate Density Residential to High Density Residential.

Motion to Approve by: Smith Second by Miller Vote 3-0

Page 3


